HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 15, 2014
6:11 p.m

6: 11: 34 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting
to order at 6:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Al an Austerman, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Quttenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Cathy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Suzanne Arnstrong, Staff, Senator Kevin Meyer; Deven
Mtchell, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority, Department of Revenue; Brian Rogers, Chancellor,
University of Alaska Fairbanks; Laura Pierre, Staff,
Senator Anna Fairclough and the Legislative Budget and
Audit Committee; Deven Mtchell, Debt Manager, Departnent
of Revenue.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Laura Comer, Self, Fairbanks; Christina-Al exa Liakos, Self,
Fai rbanks; Carson Chavana, Self, Fairbanks; Kelsi Swenson,
Student, University of Alaska Anchorage; Elisabeth Allard,
Self, Wsilla; Carly Wer, Self, Anchorage; Elizabeth
Shoef fl er, Sel f, Anchor age; Kaitlynd \Ward, St udent ,
Uni versity of Al aska Anchor age.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



SUMVARY

CSSB 191(FI N
GENERAL OBLI GATI ON BOND FUND TRANSFER

CSSB 191(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

CSSB 218(FI N
MUNI BOND BANK; UAF HEAT & PWR PLANT

CsSsSB 218 (FIN) was HEARD and HELD in comittee
for further consideration.

#sb218
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 218(FIN)

"An Act relating to financing; relating to the Al aska
Muni ci pal Bond Bank  Authority; authorizing the
University of Alaska to issue bonds to finance the
design, construction, acquisition, and equipping costs
of the University of Alaska Fairbanks heat and power
pl ant; authorizing the University of Al aska to borrow
nmoney from the Al aska Municipal Bond Bank Authority to
finance the design, <construction, acquisition, and
equi pping costs of the University of Al aska Fairbanks
heat and power plant; and providing for an effective
date."

6: 12: 27 PM

SUZANNE ARMSTRONG, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, provided
introductory remarks on the |egislation. She expl ained that
the bill acconplished three objectives. First, SB 218
increased the borrowing limt of the Al aska Minicipal Bond
Bank (AMBB) from $1 billion to $1.5 billion. She infornmed
the commttee that the AMBB was a public corporation of the
state and was established in 1975. The bond bank was
created to aide Al askan communities wth financing capital
i mprovenent projects. She read exerts from the sponsor
st at enent :

The AMBB was able to use the state's credit support in
the form of a noral obligation pledge backed with an
annual appropriation to achieve AA+ credit ratings.
The AVBB was able to |everage those ratings into |ower

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



interest rates than municipalities would be able to
borrow i ndependent|y.

Ms. Arnstrong announced that every AMBB |oan has been
repai d. She continued wth the sponsor statenent.

The AMBB has saved an estimated $67 nmillion in
borrowi ng costs over the last five years through the
i ssuance of $578 mllion of bonds. Follow ng the nobst
recent bond issue, there were bonds outstanding in the
amount of $908 mllion, leaving a renmaining capacity
of $92 mllion. Bond issues currently underway are
anticipated to exceed $80 million and will use nost of
t he remai ni ng cap.

Wthout the proposed increase in the borrowing limt,
it is likely that over the next 12-18 nonths the AMBB
will have fully utilized the current borrowing limt
and nunicipalities may be subjected to borrow ng funds
at higher rates. The borrowing limt for the AVBB was
raised nost recently in 2010 from $750 mllion to $1
billion. In 2006, the borrowng limt was raised from
$500 million to $750 mllion.

Ms. Arnstrong continued with the second provision of the
bill.

CS SB 218 (FIN) further provides that the University
of Alaska (UA) may utilize the AMBB for the

purpose of issuing debt, in an anobunt not to exceed
$150 m | lion.

Ms. Arnstrong delineated that statute authorized AMBB to
loan to nunicipalities or "nunicipal joint insurance
arrangenents” under AS 21.76. The | egislation expanded the
authority of AMBB to loan to UOA for construction a
conmbi ned heat and power plant on the Fairbanks canpus.

She concluded with the third provision of the |egislation.

CS SB 218 (FIN also provides the legislative
approval , required under AS 14.40. 253, for the
i ssuance of University of Al aska revenue bonds and for
the University of Alaska to borrow noney and enter
into a | oan agreenment with the AMBB for the purpose of
design, construction, acquisition, and equipping a new

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



heat and power plant at the University of Al aska

Fai r banks.
Co-Chair Stoltze wondered how close $1.5 billion was to the
state's <capacity. He noted that the |I|imt had been
increased alnost annually in a short period of tinme. The
[imt was approximately $300 nmillion 10 years ago. He

wonder ed what the "ceiling" was.

DEVEN M TCHELL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL BOND
BANK AUTHORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained that the
bond bank operated as a "true noral obligation program™
The bond bank never experienced a I|loan default by a
borrower. Therefore, none of its |oans can be included in
the states net tax supported debt for purposes of
calculating the debt capacity of the state. If a nunber of
AMBB | oans ended in default and relied on the state to
repay the loan obligations sonme or all of the bond banks
obligations would be counted as net tax supported debt. He

observed that determning a |imt on the bond banks
| ending authority was nore of an "art" than a calculation
He believed the credit limt increase requested in SB 218

was a safe ampbunt and would not result in a rating action.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether a proposal of $500
mllion in the following year would alert the rating
anal yst s.

M. Mtchell replied that it depended on the "nature of the
noral obligation" and cautioned that a |oan associated with
risk would raise al arns.

Co- Chair Austerman pointed to page 6, |ine 4.

(1) the anticipated annual paynment anount is
$7, 000, 000;

He wondered who would nake the annual paynment of $7
mllion.

M. Mtchell answered that the |egislation allowed the bond
bank to purchase bond issues with the University for an
amount up to $150 million. Under Section 9 of the bill the
university's loan limt would be $87.5 mllion. The |oan
woul d be secured by a "subordinated revenue pledge" by UA
The anount collected by UA would be obligated m nus certain
operating costs. He alluded to the fiscal note FN1 (UA) and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



expl ained that the state would assist with the university's
obligations, which aligned with the states past practi ce.

6:21: 06 PM

BRI AN ROGERS, CHANCELLOR, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
added that the original fiscal note had provided for a
state appropriation of $7 mllion per year of general funds
to repay the AMBB |oan and for the university to pay the
costs through fuel savings and additional fees for the
repayment of the portion of the $70 mllion bond issue
authorized with university receipts. He revealed that the
university was working on a revised fiscal note "to put
them in balance.” The revision depended on the adoption of
an amendnent that had not been offered yet.

Co-Chair Austerman wanted clarification regarding bond
repaynent.

M. Rogers responded that there were two bonds; an $87.5
mllion bond issue that would be paid by the state and a
$70 mllion university bond that wuld be paid by
uni versity revenues and savings generated from | owered fuel
costs.

Co-Chair Austerman clarified that the state would pay the
$7 mllion fromthe general fund.

M. Rogers replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara ascertained that the state would pay $7
mllion per year; the university would pay the other $70
mllion with savings and university receipts. He wondered
who pai d the debt service.

M. Mtchell replied that the underlying borrowers paid the
debt service. He enphasized that the obligation bel onged to
the university.

Representati ve Gara  asked whet her historically t he
muni ci palities paid the debt service on the bonds and the
state had not paid any debt service costs.

M. Mtchell replied in the affirmative.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Representative Costell o wondered where the renmi nder of the
$245 mllion total costs for the power plant would cone
from

Ms. Arnstrong replied that SB 119 [Budget: Capital]; the
capital budget bill contained a university appropriation
for $37 mllion and a reappropriation of $50 mllion for
t he bal ance.

Representative Costello inquired about the $50 mllion
reappropriation. She wondered what the original source of
t he fundi ng was.

Ms. Arnmstrong answered that it originated from the
Sust ai nable Energy Transm ssion Solutions (SETS) fund
established in SB 25 [Aidea: Sustainable Energy/ Interest
Rate - Enacted Septenber 2012] in 2012.

Representative Costello asked if the $37.5 mllion anount
was undesi gnated general funds (UGF).

Ms. Armstrong replied that the anmount derived from
desi gnat ed general funds (DGF).

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether the SETS fund had been a
| oan programin the past.

Ms. Arnmstrong remenbered that SETS was forned to be a |oan
and |oan guarantee program under the Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority (Al DEA)

Co-Chair Austerman understood that the SETS program had
been originally designed as a |oan program He asked for
verification that the $50 nillion was not a loan but a
deduction fromthe fund.

Ms. Arnstrong answered in the affirmative. She indicated
that the noney was a reappropriation of funds from SETS to
t he power plant project.

Representative WIson inquired whether UAF students were
exclusively being assessed the university's portion of the
bond repaynment in the formof higher tuitions fees.

M. Rogers responded that the additional university receipt
revenue would be derived from other receipts and student
receipts. The Board of Regents nmade decisions regarding

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



tuition increases. He believed the Board of Regents would
consider that the plant benefitted the Fairbanks canpus.

Representative WIson thought that the wuniversity system
was unified and that tuition increases were assessed system
wi de.

M . Rogers replied that board policy conventionally
expended the funds on the canpus where the tuition was
rai sed

Representative WIson wondered whet her the Fairbanks canpus
woul d still be able to conpete with other branches of the
university if tuition costs were nuch higher due to bearing
the cost of such an expensive project alone.

M. Rogers replied that tuition decisions were nmade by the
Board of Regents and he could not speak to the issue.

Representative WIlson believed the issue was inportant to
determne prior to passing the legislation. A much higher
tuition increase for the Fairbanks canpus would be
al arm ng. Expenses could be absorbed better if the entire
uni versity system was working together. She hoped the board
under stood t he repercussions of such a deci sion.

Co- Chai r Stoltze referred to his college education
experience at the UAF canpus. He renenbered paying student
fees on indebtedness. He wondered whether allocating
tuition fees to pay a bonded i ndebt edness was conmmon.

M. Rogers reported that the student recreation center on
t he Fairbanks canmpus was a student financed facility. The
bonded indebtedness was currently being paid by student
fees. He was not aware of other student financed facilities
with the exception of student housing; a portion of the
debt was paid by student housing fees.

Co-Chair Stoltze clarified that since he attended college
it was unconmon for students to pay for the university's
bonded i ndebt edness.

M. Rogers affirnmed and replied that it had only occurred
at the Fairbanks canpus.

6: 33: 05 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Representative Holmes referred to the $37.5 mllion in
desi gnated general funds. She inquired about the source of
the funds. Ms. Arnstrong responded that the funds were set
aside for the Alaska Capital I|nconme Fund.

Representative Holnmes understood that typically the
muni cipalities repaid its debt back to the bond back. She
wondered whether SB 218 was the first instance where the
state woul d be payi ng the bonded i ndebt edness.

M. Mtchell answered that there were other nunicipal joint
i nsurance agreenent allowances in statute but was never
acted upon. He restated that "from the AMBB perspective"
the university was repaying the loan not the state. The
bond banks commitnents were directly from the university
and the state's role was "through the back door."

Representative Hol nes wanted to understand the university's
and the state's role in repaying the bonds. She wondered
what the state's actual or noral obligation was.

M. Rogers answered that the $70 million was referred to in
the legislation. He explained that the legislature
authorized the wuniversity to issue $70 mllion with a
notice of debt paynent in SB 218.

M. Mtchell replied that the noral obligation applied to
any bonds issued by AMBB. He was uncertain whether bond
anal ysts would want the university bonds counted as net tax
supported debt. He said the same argunent could be made for
all of the wuniversity's outstanding debt because of the
existing financial relationship with the state. Through
AMBB' s potential authorization the university had a conduit
to access the capital market at the highest ratings (AAt)
that it would not norrmally be able to attain through its
own senior lien debt. The state would benefit through the
use of the bond bank which allowed the wuniversity nmuch
better | everage.

Representati ve Hol mes wondered what the paynments on the $87
mllion were.

M. Mtchell answered that the interest rate and term were
the primary factors in determning repaynent. The actual
anount depended on the final structuring of the debt. The
paynents were referred to in the university's fiscal note
FNL (UA).

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Representative Holmes «clarified that the fiscal not e
appropri ated approximately $7 mllion per year for paynent.

M. Mtchell answered in the affirmative and recalled that
the paynent was based on a 20 vyear anortization and
relatively high interest rate conpared to rates that were
currently avail abl e.

Representative Holnes surmsed that the paynent was based
on a conservative estinate.

M. Mtchell answered in the affirmati ve.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the noney for the SETS fund was
classified as DGF.

Ms. Arnstrong expressed uncertainty and would follow up on
t he questi on.

Co-Chair Stoltze believed that there was a "nuch broader
vision for the SETS fund." He recounted that when the SETS
fund was established only two years ago it was capitalized
with unrestricted general funds through the capital budget.
The SETS funding was a major conponent for the Fairbanks
gas trucking bill [SB 23 AIDEA: LNG Project; D vidends;
Fi nancing - Enacted June 2013] for the Interior |ast year.
He thought the funds were being "swept out" and that the
SETS fund shoul d have | asted | onger than two years.

Representative QGuttenberg asked for an explanation of the
total power plant financing package.

M. Rogers replied that the total project cost was $245
mllion. He detailed that the board's initial request was

for $195 nillion from the state and $50 mllion self-
financed through the fuel cost savings by the university.
The $50 million had grown to $70 million factoring the use

of new fees and other income |eaving the remainder the
obligation of the state. The current UAF heat and power
pl ant provi ded heat and electricity to the entire
university canpus; it was built in 1962 and was antici pated
to have a wuseful life of 50 years. The current project
upgrade replaced two old coal boilers, substantially
reduced em ssions, and increased efficiency which resulted
in fuel cost savings. He summarized that the financing
package used state operating and capital funds, university
recei pts, and fuel savings.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Representative Quttenberg conmunicated that the plant was a
heating plant that provided power but was not a "power
pl ant."

Co- Chair Austerman thought that statewide tuition would be
used to repay the bond debt.

M. Rogers answered that the Board of Regents had not
deci ded on any repaynent portion being paid by tuition. He
thought that an opportunity to wuse other funds was
possi bl e. The decision would be nade in 2017 when the first
bond paynment was due. He reiterated the board policy that
tuition generated at a particular canpus was used at the
canpus.

Co-Chair Austerman commented that the fiscal note, FN1 (UA)
described a 20-year payoff at 5 percent interest totaling
$140 mllion over tine. He wondered whether there had been
di scussi on about paying the entire $87.5 mllion.

Ms. Arnmstrong replied that there had been multiple
conversations about how to fund the project. The
di scussions with nenbers of the Senate Finance Conmittee
and university lead to the current financing package.

M. Mtchell interjected that the current bond bank 20 year
rate was 3.45 percent.

Representative Munoz asked for further clarification about
t he amount of the AMBB | oan.

Ms. Arnstrong answered that the bond bank issuance woul d be
$87.5 mnmillion. She referred to an anendnment the sponsor
hoped to offer that would clarify the issue.

Representative Minoz understood that the wuniversity also
i ncurred a bonded i ndebt edness of $70 mllion.

Ms. Arnstrong answered in the affirmative.

Representative Miunoz asked how the university intended to
repay the debt.

M. Rogers responded that the $70 million would be paid by
fuel cost savings and new revenues. The university spent
approximately $10 nmillion per year and the upgrade would
decrease the cost to under $6 mllion per year. Currently

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



the university used coal, diesel, and purchased electricity
for heat. The new plant would generate the entire canpus'
heati ng needs.

Representati ve Munoz asked for verification that the $87.5
mllion would be paid back by the general fund.

Ms. Arnstrong replied that the debt service would be an
itemin the university's operating budget. She referred to
t he discussions regarding financing the project and shared
that student fees other than tuition such as, a facility
fuel surcharge nmay be assessed to students and others using
the building as well. A tuition increase was not specified
in the discussions and the board had the discretion to
exanm ne all options that may be available to repay the debt
servi ce.

6: 50:15 PM

Representative Minoz asked for verification that the bond
i ndebt edness would be repaid through a conbination of
uni versity recei pts and general fund supports.

Ms. Arnmstrong answered in the affirmative.

Representative Minoz clarified that the $70 mllion would
be repaid through fuel cost savings and a possible tuition
I ncrease.

Ms. Arnmstrong answered in the affirmative and stressed that
"other fees" could be assessed in lieu or addition to
tuition.

Representative Minoz asked whether the [other] $87.5
mllion from SETS and the Al aska Capital Incone Fund were
grants.

Ms. Arnstrong replied that the funds were a direct state
appropriation.

Representative Costello referred to the university's aging
heat and power plant. She wondered what the university's
energency backup plan was.

M. Rogers answered that in addition to two coal boilers

there were two oil boilers that had the capacity to heat
the canmpus. If enployed, the fuel bill would rise from $10

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



mllion up to $30 mllion annually. He did not want to be
in a situation to enploy the oil boilers when the coal
boi | ers broke down.

Representative Edgnmon wondered whether the university
conpl eted the design work.

M . Rogers answered that the conceptual design was
conpleted sufficient to obtain a permt. The next step
woul d be to purchase the main boilers and turbines through
conpetitive bid. Once the vendors were chosen the plant
woul d be desi gned around the fixed equi prment.

Representative Edgnon asked whether a partial funding
package coul d nove the project forward.

M. Rogers responded that the university could not issue
the university bonds until the entire project was secured
since there wuld be no fuel savings for repaynent.
Uninterrupted construction of the plant was the nost
efficient way to carry out the project.

Co-Chair Stoltze gave the university credit for convincing
people in a wuniversity environnent that solar and w nd
woul d not be the answer.

M. Rogers agreed. He infornmed the commttee that there had
been no adverse public coment during the permtting
process with the acknowl edgenent of the project's increased
fuel efficiency.

Representative Holnmes asked about the timng of the
project. M. Rogers answered that the wuniversity would
begin site preparation in the current year. The
construction would begin in 2015 and would conclude in
2018.

Representati ve Hol nes wondered how the phase in of the new
pl ant woul d wor k.

M. Rogers answered that the upgrade would not disrupt
operations of the current plant.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman wondered whether the bond bank would
i ssue bonds if the borrower was unable to repay them

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



M. Mtchell answered that AMBB had a rigid process for
analyzing loans. The bank utilized an independent third
party financial advisor that reviewed applications in
addition to the AMBB board. Due to the rigorous approval
process all of the |oans had been repaid. The bank had a
100 percent expectation of repaynent.

Co- Chair Austerman OPENED public testinony.

LAURA COMER, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in
opposition to the bill. She was astonished that the Board
of Regents had not determned the student's contribution
towards paynent for the power plant. She felt that nany
questions that arose during the hearing renmai ned unanswered
and that the student body was burdened by increased
financial costs. Residents of Fairbanks were already
| eaving the conmmunity because of health concerns due to
poor air quality. She believed that requiring students to
shoul der the burden of a coal plant and tying the canpus to
"outdated” technology for 50 years was "absurd."” She
advocated for spending on alternative energy solutions. She
t hought that nost banks would not finance coal plants and
believed that the plant would not pay for itself. She
guestioned the financial and environnental repercussion of
constructing the power plant and reiterated that nany
guestions were not answered. She urged the conmittee not to
support the project, deemng it an "inconplete idea."

CHRI STI NA- ALEXA LI AKGCS, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), opposed the |legislation. She believed
guestions remained about the plants financing and wanted
answers. She was concerned that the Board of Regents had
not yet net to discuss solutions or the students expected
fi nanci al participation. She t hought the burden of
repaynent mght drive up tuition costs and increase the
dropout rate. She wondered whether other options were
expl or ed. She understood that there was geothermal
potential in the Fairbanks area. She believed there were
nmor e sustai nabl e options. She wondered whet her the Usebelli
coal conpany financially influenced the decision.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that the donations of the
Usebelli fam |y were appreciated by the university.

7:04: 22 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



CARSON CHAVANA, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), spoke
to her overwhelm ng student debt as a recent graduate due
to growmng tuition costs. She synpathized wth students
that may not support the project. She w shed alternative
solutions were explored. She believed that there may be a
substantial funding gap even with tuition or fee increases.
She wurged the conmttee to retrofit the existing plant
while | ooking into "viable" renewabl e energy options.

KELSI SWENSON, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA ANCHORACE (via
tel econference), spoke against the bill. She referred to
the phrase "noral obligations.” She felt that it was a
noral obligation for the wuniversity to provide for the
wel fare of students. She spoke in strong opposition to the
project. She believed the coal plant was a "despicable"
option in the face of climte change and the poor air
quality in Fairbanks. She wanted the university to "pave
the way" for clean renewable energy options. She was upset
the hearing had been scheduled with short notice during
finals week. She thought that the student body was being
burdened with environnental and financial costs of the
project. She inplored the university to place nore value on
its student body

ELI SABETH ALLARD, SELF, WASILLA (via tel econference), spoke
agai nst the project. She comented that Fairbanks had poor
air quality. She felt that the university's decision was to
choose a coal fired plant instead of healthier energy
options was unacceptable. She reported that she experienced
nine air quality advisory days in Fairbanks in the |ast six

nmont hs. She Dbelieved that the Usebelli coal pl ant
contributed to poor air quality in Fairbanks and was
| obbying the wuniversity to construct the plant. She

di scussed that the university was an intellectual "hub" and
should be at the forefront of alternative solutions. She
believed it was shanmeful that the university was seeking to
build a coal powered plant when other canpuses around the
country were divesting from coal. She considered the
project "egregious", "fiscally irresponsible” and not
worthy of the increased financial burden on the student
body. She stressed that increased tuition equated to
i ncreased student debt. She vehenently opposed the project
and suggested the wuniversity retrofit the current plant,
reduce energy consunption, and utilize alternative energy
to of fset coal use.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



CARLY W ER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to the bill. She was deeply concerned about the
state's financial future. She was concerned that using coal
as an energy solution was a "resounding step backward" in
finding clean energy solutions for the Interior. She
referred to prior public testinmony on the capital budget
concerning alternative energy solutions. She felt the
budget itens were a strong and wi se investnents that would
support healthy comunities. She felt conpelled to testify
about the $245 mllion coal plant because the costs were
too high. She asked how the funds would be paid back. She
believed the students should have a right to weigh in on
how the funds, derived from increased tuition or student
fees, would be spent. She understood that the plant would
be constructed to burn coal and biomass and how that would
affect air quality. She believed many of her friends in
Fai r banks were considering noving due to the city's poor
air quality. She wondered if the plant should be built to
accommodat e natural gas. She believed it was "shocking and
irresponsible” to rush into an exorbitant project wth
unanswer ed questi ons.

ELI ZABETH SHOEFFLER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
opposed the legislation. She spoke against using funding
for renewable energy options to help finance the coal
plant. She believed the coal plant was unhealthy for the
students and did not want to help fund the plant through
increased tuition or fees. She asked the wuniversity to
consider alternative energy sources.

KAI TLYND WARD, STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in opposition of the project. She
was concerned about potential increases in tuition. She
felt wunanswered questions remained about repaying the
project and the inpact on student fees and tuition. She
wondered how the project could nove forward w thout the
Board of Regents neeting. She spoke to the inportance of
cl ean and renewabl e energy.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.
Representative WIson noted that there was a reason the
university had opted against using natural gas. She asked

for a reiteration about what the plant would do to current
em ssi ons.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



M. Rogers answered that during the planning process the
university examned twelve different options that included
a w de range of technologies and fuels for the project. The
coal option had been selected based on the environnental
benefits, the economcs, and the ability to permt the
proj ect .

M. Rogers spoke to the environnmental benefits; the plant
would reduce pm 2.5 (particulate matter 2.5 mcrons or
|l ess) emssions by 45 percent, oxidized nitrogen by 64
percent, and oxidized sulfur by 60 percent. Every regul ated
em ssion would be lower than it was at present. Carbon
dioxide would also be lower. The capital costs of the
nat ur al gas plant were significantly |ower, but the
Iifespan was also significantly lower. A natural gas boiler
woul d actually increase pm 2.5 through the exhaust stream
by secondary products of conbustion. Extra costs to
mtigate pm 2.5 would be incurred by using natural gas. The
fuel costs would be $10 million higher annually if a gas
pl ant was constructed due to the projected costs of trucked
in natural gas. The new coal plant could be retrofitted to
use natural gas at a cost of $3 million to $5 mllion for
natural gas provided the university could obtain the permt
and mitigate the particulate natter em ssions.

7:20:11 PM

Representative WIson asked about retrofitting the current
boi |l er.

M. Rogers answered that the university could not retrofit
the current boilers to use natural gas. The university did
retrofit an oil boiler to use both oil and natural gas.

Representative WIlson wondered if the two old boilers could
be removed and the new ones installed in the existing
facility as a cost savings.

M. Rogers replied in the negative. He detailed that the
current boilers were necessary year around and could not be
shut down.

Representative WIlson recalled that the $25 nillion
appropriated fromthe SETS fund for natural gas trucking in
the interior was a loan and not a grant. She asked if the
university explored extending the |oan repaynent period to
| ower costs.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



M. Rogers answered that the university had | ooked at the
muni ci pal bond bank extending out the paynent schedul e
whi ch reduced the current fiscal note.

Co-Chair Austerman spoke to prior testinmony by Patrick
Ganble, President of the University of Al aska, who had
spoken about a deferred maintenance fund. He pointed to
deferred maintenance funding in the governor's capital
budget totaling $37.5 mllion. The Senate Finance Capita
Budget had renoved the funds. He wondered about the
connecti on.

M. Rogers noted that the Senate Finance Committee budget
had reduced only the UAF capital budget deferred
mai nt enance funds.

Co-Chair Austerman asked for clarification; the reduction
appeared to apply to all of the districts and not just the
Fai r banks canpus.

Ms. Arnmstrong replied that the $37.5 mllion only inpacted
districts 1 through 5 which only included the Fairbanks
canpus.

CSSB 218(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further
consi derati on.

7:27: 25 PM
AT EASE

7:28: 30 PM
RECONVENED

#sb191
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 191(FIN)

"An Act relating to the authority of the Legislative
Budget and Audit Comrittee to approve the tenporary
transfer of noney from the general fund to
construction funds or accounts; and providing for an
effective date.”

SUZANNE ARMSTRONG, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, discussed
the legislation. She announced that SB 191 provided an
adm nistrative fix, established paraneters for transferring
general funds to Ceneral Obligation Bonds (G0 construction
funds, and enabled better flexible nmanagenment of GO bond

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



construction funds and accounts by the State Bond
Conmittee. She delineated that when the GO bond
construction fund was tenporarily exhaust ed t he
commi ssioner of the Departnent of Administration (DOA) on
recommendati on by the bond committee and Legi sl ati ve Budget
and Audit Commttee (LBA) approval may tenporarily transfer
funds from the general fund into the bond fund. Under SB
191, if the transfer did not exceed 25 percent of the anount
of the GO bond, the Comm ssioner did not need LBA approval
In addition, SB 191 authorized a 15-nonth |oan period when
advanced funds were transferred from the CGeneral Fund to a
&0 Bond construction fund. The change aligned with Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) requirenents that "advance fund bond
i ssuance |oans were repaid by bond proceeds wthin 18
nmonths." She noted the proposed shorter tinmeframe than
required by the IRS. She added that the |egislation enabled
nmore certainty in project schedules and cash flow and
greater capability for the State Bond Conmittee to "respond
to unforeseen increases in project expenditures.” In
addi ti on, SB 191 facilitated greater flexibility in
i npl enenting bond sales. The statute change "elim nated the
negative carry costs of borrowed funds sitting in
construction funds for extended periods of tine."

Representative Holmes asked for clarification about how a
transfer from the general fund could occur wthout any
| egi sl ative oversight.

LAURA PIERRE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA FAIRCLOUGH AND THE
LEG SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE, replied that SB 191
elimnated the LBA authorization requirenent if the anount
of the transfer did not exceed 25 percent of the authorized
bond ampbunt however, notification was still required.

Representative Holnmes wondered what anmount of noney 25
percent of the authorized bond anobunt typically was.

DEVEN M TCHELL, DEBT MANAGER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
replied that the authorization required was technical in
nat ur e. The | egi sl ature currently gr ant ed t he
adm nistration the authorization to borrow up to the full
anount of the bond for the sane purpose w thout terns of
repaynent. The flexibility currently existed but nmust be
reaut hori zed each year in the operating budget. He offered
that a situation could occur where the debt was not sold
over a certain time period and was not included in the
operating budget. He continued that the only outstanding

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



bond debt authorization happened with the Transportation
Act of 2012 which anmounted to approximately $450 nillion.
Twenty five percent of approximately $110 mllion could
have been authorized for cash flow purposes for up to 15
nont hs.

M. Mtchell discussed instances when the flexibility to
transfer f unds wi t hout approval woul d have been
advant ageous. He detailed that the state did not issue GO
bonds for a long period of tinme but had the authorization
in 1984 and 2003. The federal and IRS requirenents and
restrictions currently were much nore stringent on tax
exenpt debt than they had been in 1984. The bill allowed
the state to neet the restrictions; one such restriction
required the state to spend the proceeds from the sale of
tax exenpt bonds wthin three years which, had proven
problematic. In 2003 the state sold approximately $450
mllion in transportation bonds and did not expend all of
the funds until 2012. The three year limt was
unattainable. In 2008 the Transportation Act was approved,

but a portion of the funds had been replaced with genera

funds. The state was only able to sell approximately half
of the bond authorization of $165 mllion in April 2009 to
fund 18 nmonths of cash flow The Anerican Recovery and
Rei nvestment Act (ARRA) had been approved and the funds
were not expended until 2013. The $165 mllion was borrowed
at a 4 percent interest rate anortized for 20 years. The
state could not reinvest the proceeds over the long term
therefore; the departnment was very conservative about the
reinvestnment of proceeds. The negative carry associated
amounted to mllions of dollars. The departnent | earned
that it needed to approach the bond issues differently and
to the extent possible sell "just in time" rather than
upfront in anticipation of a project.

7:38: 02 PM

Representative Holnmes ascertained that due to the three
year limt, which the state was not able to consistently
neet, fromthe time that the state sells the bonds to the
time the state nust expend the funds, the state would
rather borrow it fromthe general fund and pay it back with
bond funds. She asked for verification.

M. Mtchell concurred. He elaborated that there was a

potential for <certain cash flow issues to arise when
funding projects "just in tine." A project can speed up and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



the state cannot execute a bond issue in one nonth; nore
time was needed to structure the loan. The |Ilegislation
provided the flexibility to nmeet the need on tine.

Representative Holnmes wondered if it had been a problem
obtaining Legislative Budget and Audit approval 1in the
past. She wondered why LBA should be "taken out of the
picture."”

M. Mtchell replied that the timng el enent was a factor.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about the discussion regarding the
issue in LBA comm ttee.

Ms. Pierre answered that prior to the drafting of the bil
Senator Fairclough had nmet wth the Departnent of Revenue
and M. Mtchell to discuss the legislation in particular.
She relayed that Senator Fairclough "had no problem wth
the legislation. She <cited page 2, line 8, of the
legislation and related that Senator Fairclough requested
that LBA be notified when such transfers occurred. The
al l omance was in line with other funds such as the Disaster
Rel i ef Fund and the DEC Spill Response Fund.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the Legislative Budget and Audit
Comm ttee had taken formal action to support the bill.
Ms. Pierre replied in the negative.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked whether the flexibility would allow
the departnent to save the state noney by watching interest
rates and borrowi ng noney |l ater or earlier depending on the
i nterest rate.

M. Mtchell replied that there could be an opportunity to
save noney by not borrowi ng noney as quickly and obligate
the negative carry in the construction fund. He exenplified
that if the state lost 3 percent of $100 mllion the state

would pay $3 million in interest expense just to have the
nmoney sit in the bank. He pointed to another exanple. He
reported that market disturbances |ike the crash in 2008

potentially caused |osses. At the tine of the market crash
he was working on a transaction with the Mtanuska Susitna
Borough on a correctional facility. He attenpted to "price
the deal” on Decenber 7, 2008. At the tine, the statutory
limt on the debt service was $17.8 nillion annually. The
interest rates were too high at the tine to neet the limt.
The design and build contractor was ready to begin and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



could termnate the contract on Decenber 31st. The state
ultimately sold the bonds on Decenber 31, 2008 for fewer
than 6 percent and three nonths later it would have been 5
percent. He believed that the situation led to the state
paying a higher interest rate, and exenplified the need for
granting the departnent the increased flexibility.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman surmised that the flexibility to maneuver
had the potential for considerabl e savings.

M. Mtchell answered that that would be a goal of the
| egislation. He voiced that the "easily defined" goal was
neeting the IRS code limt for the tax exenpt bond issues.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered why LBA had not taken conmittee
action on the matter. He believed it would have been
"cl eaner.”

Representative Gara asked what provision in the state
constitution permtted noney withdrawals from the general
fund without |egislative authorization.

M. Mtchell answered that GO bond debt did not require an
appropriation for repaynment. He was not certain whether an
appropriation was required for wusing general funds as
liquidity for an anticipated general bond issue.

Representative Gara wanted the state to have the
flexibility to borrow as inexpensively as possible but he
t hought a constitutional prohibition against general fund
wi t hdrawal w thout | egislative approval existed.

M. Mtchell responded that other instances were cited
earlier where authority to use general funds existed. He
reiterated that the AMBB had the authority to borrow from
the general fund. The bond transfer would borrow funds from
the general fund for the purposes of liquidity and the
general fund woul d be repl eni shed.

Representative Gara restated that general constitutional
rule stated that noney could not be withdrawn from the
general fund wthout |egislative approval. He wondered how
the provision was |legal. He wondered if the bill would help
reduce the student |oan interest rate.

Ms. Pierre answered that the bill he was referring to was
SJR 23.

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



7:49:39 PM

Representative Minoz asked if there were exanples when the
LBA comm ttee had sl owed down the process.

M. Mtchell replied in the negative. He offered that there
was an instance when timng with the LBA neetings was an
issue in resolving a cash flow matter.

Co-Chair Stoltze OPENED public testinony.
Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed to the zero fiscal note, FN1 (REV)
fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

Representative Gara wanted sonmeone to point to the |ocation
in the constitution that authorized the provision.

Co-Chair Austerman cited Article 9 [Finance and Taxation]
Section 13 of the Al aska Constitution and referred to the
words "appropriated by law." He surmsed that SB 191 was a
| aw al | owi ng the appropriation.

Representative Edgnon referred to the previous bill [SB 218
Muni  Bond Bank; UAF Heat & Pwr Plant] and asked whether
passage of SB 191 affected SB 218.

M. Mtchell replied in the negative.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether the 25 percent was an
absol ute maxi mum or was the 25 percent |imt allowed for
each transfer of funds.

M. Mtchell replied that it was the intent of the
adm nistration that the Iimt was up to 25 percent of the
total bond authorization. He exenplified that a $100
mllion bond allowed borrowing of up to $25 mllion at any
point in tinme for to 15 nonths for the purposes of
liquidity.

Co-Chair Stoltze cited page 1 line 11:

If the anpbunt of the transfer exceeds 25 percent of
t he anmount

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze inserted the word "cumul ative" in front of
transfer and wondered if that would nore clearly indicate
the intent of the 25 percent |limt and not "harm the
| egi sl ation.

AT EASE
7:55:40 PM

RECONVENED
7:56:25 PM

M. Mt chel | pointed out that once enployed for a
particular authorization the |anguage would elimnate the
ability to use the provision for future potential bond
i ssue use. He suggested using |anguage that indicated that
the 25 percent was "rolling."

Representative Hol mes wondered whether it was possible to

hold the bill unti | the proper I|anguage <could be
i dentified.

Representative Costello asked if adding the word,
“initially authorized" after anpbunt to read, " |If the

anount of the transfer exceeds 25 percent of the anount
initially authorized."

Co-Chair Stoltze wanted to ensure clarity in the |anguage
and thought the issue was a "very inportant policy" matter.

Representative Holnes believed that the commttee needed
nore tinme to find the proper |anguage.

Ms. Arnstrong stated her willing to work with the commttee
to ensure that the | anguage was correct and that the inpact
woul d affect the intent of the provision.

Co-Chair Stoltze wanted to prevent future abuses of the
provision via clarification and to ensure that the intent
of the sponsor was net.

Co- Chair Austernman asked about the full paragraph on page 1
begi nning on line 6. He read:

"When a construction fund or account established to

receive the proceeds of state general obligation
bonds.."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



Co- Chair Aust er man wonder ed whet her t he wor ds a
construction fund or account” net the intent of the
| egislation. He thought that the |anguage was not specific
enough.

M. Mtchell answered that when general obligation bonds
were authorized a fund was sinultaneously created to
deposit the proceeds. The |I|anguage referred to that
particular fund. He suggested the anendnent |anguage "at
any tinme" after the word transfer to read:

“If the anpbunt of the transfer at any time exceeds 25
percent of the anount authorized"

M. Mtchell explained that the 25 percent limt could not
be exceeded wi t hout approval from LBA

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether the suggestion natched the
intent of the sponsor.

Ms. Pierre replied in the affirmative.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

8:04: 04 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 8:04 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 15/ 14 6:11 P. M



